
CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION, CULTURE AND LEISURE SERVICES 
 
Venue: Town Hall, Moorgate 

Street, Rotherham. 
Date: Tuesday, 18 January 2005 

  Time: 8.30 a.m. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Rotherham Cultural Consortium (Pages 1 - 9) 

 - to receive minutes 

 
4. Summer 2004 Key Stage 2 Assessment Results (Pages 10 - 17) 

 - to inform of Key Stage 2 attainment in Rotherham Primary Schools in 2004 

 
5. Ofsted Inspections of Rotherham Schools:  Summer and Autumn Terms 2004 

(OFSTED Section 10 reports for all schools inspected - NOT AVAILABLE 
ELECTRONICALLY). (Pages 18 - 21) 

 - to inform Members of the outcome of the Ofsted inspection of those schools 
inspected during the Autumn and Summer Terms 

 
6. Education, Culture and Leisure Complaints Summary April-September, 2004 

(Pages 22 - 26) 
  

 
(The Chairman authorised consideration of the following open item at the 

meeting to enable Members to be informed of the current situation). 
 
7. School Balances and Planned Use (Pete Hudson, Strategic Finance Officer) 

(report herewith). (Pages 27 - 33) 
  

 
The following item is likely to be considered in the absence of the press and 
public as being exempt under Paragraph 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 

Local Government Act 1972:- 
 

 
8. Opening of Tenders - New Library and Clinic Building at Ellis Street, 

Brinsworth, Rotherham. (Pages 34 - 35) 
  

 
9. Date and Time of Next Meeting  
  

 

 



 

 

ROTHERHAM CULTURAL CONSORTIUM 
WEDNESDAY, 8TH DECEMBER, 2004 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Boyes (in the Chair) 
Councillor K. Wyatt 
Mrs. E. Temple 
Mr. S. Lister 
Mr. B. Beeley 
Mrs. J. Williams 
Ms. C. Cox 
Mr. R. Newman 
Mr. D. Gayton 
Mr. R. Bye 
 
R.M.B.C. Officers:- 
 
Mr. Guy Kilminster  Manager, Libraries, Museums & Arts 
Mr. Tony Preston  Project Development Manager, Culture, Leisure & 
Lifelong     Learning 
Mrs. Marie Hayes  Commercial & Promotional Services Manager 
Mr. Steve Hallsworth  Business Manager, Leisure and Green Spaces, 
      Culture, Leisure and Lifelong Learning 
 
13. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Austen, Littleboy 

and St. John, Martin Happs, Val Allen, Michelle Mellor (representing 
Tourism Officer) and Tony Clabby. 
 

14. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 15TH SEPTEMBER, 2004  
 

 The minutes of the previous meeting were approved as a corret record. 
 

15. MATTERS ARISING  
 

 (a) The Old Three Cranes, High Street 
 
In response to a question raised regarding the present position of 
ownership of these premises, the meeting was informed that the owner 
had now sold it on.  Economic and Development Services was currently 
trying to ascertain the name of the purchaser. 
 
The main issue for the Council was the need to act upon a Notice served 
requiring the removal of the shop front or action to tone it down.  There 
was presently no Conservation Officer in post within Economic and 
Development Services. 
 
Agreed:-  That Councillor Boyes raise this matter with the Executive 
Director, Economic and Development Services at the next meeting of the 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



 

Property Board. 
 
(b) St. Ann’s Swimming Pool 
 
A question was raised regarding the completion date of 2007 for the new 
central swimming pool and whether this continued to be on target. 
 
It was confirmed that this remained the case. 
 

16. FUTURE PERFECT: ROTHERHAM'S CULTURAL STRATEGY  
 

 Quarterly update reports were given on the implementation of individual 
elements of the Future Perfect Action Plan, as follows:- 
 
Museum & Arts - The official opening of the newly refurbished Museum 
would take place on Friday, 11th March 2005 and all members of the 
Consortium would receive an invitation to attend. 
 
A “soft” opening for members of the public was planned for Saturday, 29th 
January 2005 and work was on target to meet this date. 
 
It had been almost seven years since the original bid had been submitted 
to Heritage Lottery Council which was the usual timescale for projects of 
this size. 
 
Building work was expected to be completed by Christmas 2004. 
 
Display units were now well under way and graphic panels had arrived.  
Staff were moving back and the installation of objects started next week.  
A great deal of work was to be done in the next six weeks. 
 
The meeting paid tribute to all staff for their efforts in achieving the 
completion of a massive project to schedule. 
 
The new museum was a significant improvement and the project had 
dominated other work. 
 
Members of the Consortium paid compliments to Friends Groups which it 
was felt had been crucial to the success of the project and looked forward 
to the opening of such a prestigious project. 
 
Libraries – Excellent news was that Charter Mark status had recently 
been awarded for good customer focus within the Library Service.   
 
In addition, the Authority had recently been awarded overall scores of 3 
for their approach to ‘Framework for the Future’ and in relation to Public 
Library Standards.  This compared to scores of 3 and 1 last year. 
 
This was viewed as a good foundation to build on and was a 
consequence of the hard work of library staff. 

Page 2



 

 

 
Library Standards remained challenging and new challenges remained to 
be focused on next year.  Work was ongoing to identify what those 
challenges were and how it was possible to meet them. 
 
Councillor Boyes made the point that both awards were of great benefit to 
the Council in terms of the way it was regarded and assessed both locally 
and nationally.  It was particularly pleasing to have a representative from 
the IdEA peer assessors from other Councils to look at developing 
excellent targets in Councils across the country who had made a request 
to work with Rotherham to improve Library Services in general and to 
learn from Rotherham’s good work.  Officers from Rotherham had also 
been invited to Kent County Council to discuss good practice in 
Rotherham. 
 
It was noted that Assessors had commented on the good relationships 
with Friends Groups and the whole range of support in order to achieve 
success in this work. 
 
Particular reference was made to the good work carried out by the Friends 
of Maltby Library and Junior Cricket Club. 
 
Questions were raised on the following areas of work:- 
 

- purchase of books produced locally – funding initiatives 
- accessing new cataloguing system on line 
- future work/plans to address the physical condition of libraries 

and need for new build 
- local funding/editorial support for local history writers 

 
The meeting noted the new appointment of Sarah Wickham, Principal 
Officer to the Archives and Local Studies Service. 
 
The meeting praised the hard work and dedication of the staff of the 
Archives Department, in particular to research and support recently given 
to the Rotherham Rep. 
 
Agreed:-  That the Manager, Libraries, Museums and Arts liaise with 
colleagues regarding issues raised in the discussion of this item and feed 
back advice to  relevant members of the consortium. 

 
Theatre and Arts Centre – The Pantomime had opened to the public this 
week.  Tickets were still available but the number of seats sold and 
revenue from sales had increased compared to last year. 
 
A recent visit had been made to the Brindley Theatre and Arts Centre in 
Runcorn (Halton) – a new impressive complex.  The visit had included a 
Learning Centre and Sports Stadium and had been worthwhile. 
 
One member referred to the recent success of a play performed by 

Page 3



 

Rotherham Rep and felt it should be preserved as a Rotherham play.  It 
was further suggested that the performance be repeated in the future. 
 
Leisure and Green Spaces – Friends of Parks Schemes continued to be 
successful. 
 
The Green Space Audit leading to a Green Space Strategy (and the 
Playing Field Strategy) were both nearing completion.   An additional 
element has been to catalogue information in terms of Areas Assemblies 
and attend those meetings to share information. 
 
Green Space Unit has received funding from the Heritage Lottery Fund to 
carry out work at Clifton and Boston Parks.  This is ongoing. 
 
A new play area had been opened at Bradgate Park as a result of funding 
through partnership work with the Friends of the Park.  A successful 
opening event had taken place. 
 
Recreation ground at Canklow – the new playing/changing facilities was 
now complete and available for use. 
 
Valley Park – There are plans to build a new play area over the next few 
months. and a Friends of Valley Park Group had recently been formed.   
 
Events Programme – This had been extended in Green Space this year, 
and also included sports events organised by Urban Park Rangers.  This 
had been well received and successful. 
 
The Urban Park Ranger Scheme continued to be successful.  The 
Service continued to be temporary but every effort was being made to 
secure sustained funding so that the scheme would continue into the next 
financial year. 
 
Clifton Park – A successful partnership had been formed with a private 
operator which had allowed investment into the park.  There were new 
rides at reduced costs.  It was hoped this would be well received and well 
used. 
 
Councillor Wyatt raised an issue regarding Highfield Park, Swinton.  The 
park was a priority 4(a) deemed by the European Commission to be one 
of the most deprived areas. The Highfield Park Action Group had tried to 
obtain funding from various sources over the years.   The Group had been 
given support to write bids by Groundwork but had failed every time. 
 
Steve Hallsworth undertook to look into this matter and pointed out that 
the long term view of RMBC, through the work of the Green Space audit 
and strategy, was to establish a plan to enable more decisions to be 
made and be more successful in terms of accessing funding.   
 
Thrybergh and Rother Valley Country Parks – The management of 

Page 4



 

 

cafes has now transferred back to RMBC which had been seen by 
Managers as a good opportunity to develop facilities and offer a quality 
service to the users of the parks. 
 
Grange Park Golf Course – RMBC was to work with the successful 
partner to maintain a municipal golf course and to create the required 
investment.  A great deal of interest had been shown in the invitation to 
bid from which a shortlist would be drawn up on 21st December.  It was 
hoped that in early January the parties will be invited to make 
presentations, with a final partner being chosen who then had a 
reasonable lead into the new season to start making long term 
improvements. 
 
Sport and Leisure – The Council had recently secured a partnership with 
the All Pakistani Women’s Association to establish a community coaching 
initiative. 
 
This had secured further funding for the delivery of target sports in 
communities.  There was a great deal of interest and funding was 
available to make it happen but the biggest problem was finding people 
qualified to deliver – the object of this initiative being to fill that gap.  
Partnership work was ongoing with Rotherham Rugby Club. 
 
The Council had secured funding for a Football Development Officer from 
the Football Foundation.  This is a 5 year full time and a two year part-
time post.  The Football Foundation had recently approved the person 
specification and adverts would be published in the New Year.  It was 
hoped to have an Officer in post by 1st April, 2005. 
 
Rotherham Rugby Club – RMBC were working in partnership with 
Kimberworth partnership/Rawmarsh Sports College and the All Pakistani 
Women’s Association in Ferham with plans for the next Panel in the New 
Year for a multi-sports coach (north and south of the Borough) to have a 
disability and gymnastic coach working across the borough.  In working 
together with communities it was possible to demonstrate a strategic 
approach to delivering initiatives. 
 
Disability – A Disability Sport and Activity Forum had been established in 
October.  The next meeting was in January, 2005.   This consisted of 
members from SCOPE (a Disability Group) who had advised the Council 
on ways of establishing sport and leisure facilities for disabled. 
 
Sport – A regular programme of events had been established throughout 
the year. 
 
Health and Fitness Open Day (April, 2005)- Girls Football Festival 
(May) – and Rotherham Schools Sports Centenary Year in 2005, a grand 
day was planned using the fields and athletic track and which would 
involve lots of children in a host of activities.   
 

Page 5



 

There was also a regular programme of swimming activities. 
 
Street Sports – A mobile unit was touring the borough with skateboarding 
facilities. 
 
Herringthorpe Leisure Centre – A good festival of gymnastics was to 
take place.  Several groups and organisations would be participating, 
including disability groups. 
 
A question was raised regarding an update on the development of indoor 
sports facilities and re-development at HLC.  The meeting was informed 
that the whole programme was scheduled to be complete by the end of 
2007. 
 
There was no further progress in terms of the detail of the build but a 
selection process was ongoing.  Members of the Consortium would be 
updated once further information was available. 
 
Plans were still progressing in terms of the Maltby Leisure Centre 
development. 
 
Members of the Consortium raised issues concerning the following 
aspects:- 
 

- Walking Festival 
- Footpaths/Disability Access Forum – corporate links 
- Health Benefits 
- Community Data 
 - Minority Sports – i.e. Yoga 
 - List of Speakers 

 
The meeting was informed that a team of Sports Development Officers 
had recently been established to form a physical activity group and that 
work was taking place with the Primary Care Trust (PCT) and others in 
order to re-address the need for a joined up approach to the promotion of 
physical activity – which included walking and cycling.  Services organised 
by Economic and Development Services (which included the Walking 
Festival) and meetings of Boston Park and Clifton Park and heritage 
landscape formed part of those discussions. 
 
Agreed:-  That consideration be given to placing an advertisement in 
Rotherham Matters regarding the availability of the Helping Hands 
Directory – a data base on the Council’s website containing information 
on Groups/Organisations. 
 

17. CULTURAL CONSORTIUM ADVISORY PANELS  
 

 Green Spaces - Limited progress had been made due to the non-
availability of members at the last meeting. 
 

Page 6



 

 

It may be more suitable to merge this Panel with Sport and Leisure in view 
of some members attending both forums. 
 
The Urban Park Ranger Team had given a presentation at the last 
meeting of the Panel and discussion had taken place regarding the value 
of this service and the need to sustain it. 
 
The Panel had also noted all areas of work contained within the Green 
Space Strategy and other work which included Heritage Park Schemes, 
and Green Flag Award, and officers were looking forward to raising the 
profile of green space and awareness of Local Strategic Plans of 
corporate objectives. 
 
Agreed:-  That a letter be sent to all Panel Members on suggestions for 
the future makeup and business of these groups. 
 
Sport and Leisure – This was a very worthwhile group who met on a 
regular basis and throughout the year specific sessions would take place. 
 
The Panel was currently reviewing sport and recreation strategies and 
members of the group were involved.  A Service Plan was currently being 
drafted which would be shared with members of the Advisory Group.  As 
part of this work site visits would be made to staff. 
 

18. FUTURE OF THE HERITAGE, ARCHIVES & TOURISM AND THEATRE, 
LIBRARIES, WRITING AND THE ARTS PANELS  
 

 Heritage, Archives & Tourism/Theatre, Libraries, Writing and the Arts 
– In view of poor attendance at meetings, it was felt appropriate to merge 
both Panels. 
 
A letter would be sent to members of both Panels inviting expressions of 
interest in the two merged groups, which will include times and details of 
the proposed dates for 2004/05. 
 
It will be suggested that in order to ensure consistency of membership, a 
specific day throughout the twelve month period must be adhered to.  
 
A question was raised regarding the future of Kimberworth Manor House. 
 
The meeting was informed that it was presently intended to move 
Education staff out of the building as it was not suitable for office use.  A 
decision on the most suitable way to dispose of the building would then be 
determined by the Property Board.  The Planning Service would control 
any planning proposals on its future use in view of its Grade II listed 
building status. 
 

19. THE COUNCIL'S CORPORATE VISION AND KEY PRIORITIES. 
RELATIONSHIP WITH THE ROTHERHAM PARTNERSHIP AND 
COMMUNITY STRATEGY  

Page 7



 

 
 The meeting considered the contents of a document outlining the way the 

Council will work in delivering the Borough Vision, the main themes of 
which were:- 
 

- Rotherham Learning 
- Rotherham Achieving 
- Rotherham Alive 
- Rotherham Safe 
- Rotherham Proud 

 
The topics had been agreed in partnership with Rotherham Partnership 
and the Council in ensuring the aims of both were integrated, both parties 
having signed up to the same priorities. 
 
These priorities will be reflected in the Community Strategy next year and 
work was presently being developed within those priorities.  Officers 
would ensure that the cultural centre is well represented and support all 
schemes.  Members of the Cultural Consortium will be given an 
opportunity to discuss their views. 
 
Agreed:  That a further update report be submitted to the next meeting. 
 

20. 3RD ROTHERHAM CULTURAL CONFERENCE, 2005  
 

 The meeting considered a draft timetable for the next Cultural Conference 
to be held on 6th May, 2005. 
 
The topic is Built and Landscape Heritage. 
 
Discussion took place on the membership of the Cultural Consortium with 
a suggestion being made that it should be expanded. 
 
Officers reported that it was intended to focus future meetings on specific 
issues and invite relevant specialists to attend certain meetings. 
 
Consortium members felt the conference offered an exciting timetable of 
events and was an appropriate topic to coincide with the newly 
refurbished museum. 
 
An appropriate publication would be included in the next issue of 
Rotherham Matters and invitations sent to Heritage Groups within the 
Borough nearer the time of the Conference. 
 

21. THE SOUTH YORKSHIRE CULTURAL PROSPECTUS  
 

 Consideration was given to a document on South Yorkshire Culture (a 
spoke of Yorkshire Culture, the Regional Cultural Consortium) and their 
role in continuing to work to promote the cultural sector as a key element 
of the regeneration agenda. 

Page 8



 

 

 
The paper set out the following:- 
 

- The Vision 
- The vision expressed in four strategic themes 
- South Yorkshire Spatial Strategy Group:  Vision for Rotherham 

 
It was pointed out to members of the consortium that both Guy Kilminster 
and Tony Preston are attending meetings to represent this Consortium. 
 
It was the intention to promote the cultural aspect at the South Yorkshire 
level and to identify good projects which work sub-regionally. 
 
Further details of this work was made available to members of the 
Consortium. 
 
A further update would be given on this matter at the next meeting. 
 
 
 

22. LIFELONG LEARNING OPPORTUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL  
 

 The meeting considered a request to nominate up to three co-optees to 
the Lifelong Learning Opportunities Scrutiny Panel from this forum. 
 
Agreed:-  That Christine Cox, Joyce Williams and Roy Newman be 
appointed to serve on the Lifelong Learning Opportunities Scrutiny Panel 
as co-optees for a further year. 
 

23. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 

 The meeting welcomed the recent award of the Turner prize to Jeremy 
Deller. 
 
Jeremy was known to this Authority through his work and involvement in 
the reconstruction of the Battle of Orgreave at Rother Valley Country Park 
and was held in high regard for the work he had carried out. 
 
Agreed:-  That Guy Kilminster send a letter of congratulations to Jeremy 
on behalf of this Consortium. 
 

24. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 

 Agreed:-  That the next meeting of this Consortium be held on 16th 
February, 2005 at 2.00 p.m. 
 

 

Page 9



 
 

1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member and Advisers 

2.  Date: 18th January 2005 

3.  Title: Summer 2004 Key Stage 2 assessment results 

4.  Programme Area: ECALS 

 
 
5. Summary:   
 

To inform Members of Key Stage 2 attainment in Rotherham primary 
schools in 2004. 

 
 
6. Recommendations:   
 

i) That the report be received. 
 
ii) That Cabinet is pleased to note the improvements in Key Stage 2, 

most particularly at L4+. 
 

iii) That Cabinet encourages all schools to improve their results, but 
particularly those not meeting the DfES Floor Target of 65%. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 4Page 10



7. Proposals and Details:   
 
Background: All primary schools must conduct teacher and statutory assessment 
each school year. 

 
Key Stage 2 
 
SUBJECT 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 Difference 

2003 - 
2004 

2004 
National 
(%change) 

PERCENTAGE L4+         
English SAT 63% 71.9% 72.2% 70% 70% 73% +3% 77%(+2%) 
Reading SAT 72% 79.4% 78.5% 76% 76% 79% +3% 83%(+2%) 
Writing SAT 47% 53.4% 55.5% 55% 57% 59% +2% 63%(+3%) 
Mathematics SAT 63% 71.3% 70.7% 73% 69% 71% +2% 74%(+1%) 
Science SAT 73% 83.8% 88.3% 86% 85% 84% -1% 86%(-1%) 
         
PERCENTAGE L5+         
English SAT 17% 24.0% 25% 22% 21% 21% 0% 27%(0%) 
Reading SAT 25% 36% 36% 31% 34% 34% 0% 39%(-3%) 
Writing SAT 10% 12% 13% 14% 13% 13% 0% 17%(+2%) 
Mathematics SAT 18% 22.9% 23% 25% 25% 27% +2% 31%(+2%) 
Science SAT  23% 34.1% 34% 36% 37% 41% +4% 43%(+2%) 

The 2004 Key Stage 2 Level 4+ results present a very positive profile of 
improvements for Rotherham compared to those reported nationally. The 
greatest majority of improvements at this level exceeded those nationally and 
prompted a letter of congratulations from David Milliband School Standards 
Minister. He praised the "excellent" Key Stage 2 results in 2004, and said 
children in Rotherham had some of the most improved results in the country for 
English and maths. The strength of these improvements have narrowed the gap 
between Rotherham’s performance at L4+ and those reported nationally in all 
aspects except in writing, and in science where the 1% decline was inline with 
the national trend, therefore maintaining the same distance from the national 
average as reported in 2003. English, reading and writing were 4% below the 
national averages, mathematics 3% below and science 2% below. 

Level 5+ results presented a mixed picture of performance both locally and 
nationally with English, reading and writing in Rotherham maintaining the same 
standards as 2003. No declines at this level were noted in Rotherham, compared 
to a 3% national decline in reading. Improvements in mathematics were in line 
with the national trend while the 4% improvement in science exceeded that 
nationally by 2%. The gap between Rotherham’s performance and the national 
averages is most significant in English at this higher level with a 6% difference, 
while science is closest with a difference of 2% compared to a 4% difference in 
2003.   

2004 L4+ English and writing results reached the highest outcome for Rotherham 
to date as did L5+ mathematics and science. 

Page 11



1998-2003 KEY STAGE 2 COMPARISONS 
 
SCHOOLS ACHIEVING: L4+ 

overall 
90%+ <50% <65%  

(DfES Floor 
Target) 

ENGLISH SAT 2004 73% 14  5 19 
ENGLISH SAT 2003 70% 6 7 26 
ENGLISH SAT 2002 70% 6 12 33 
ENGLISH SAT 2001 72% 8 6 23 
ENGLISH SAT 2000 71% 9 7 23 
ENGLISH SAT 1999 64% 6 12 39 
ENGLISH SAT 1998 55% 1 26 54 

     
ENGLISH (READING) SAT 2004 79% 25 3 9 
ENGLISH (READING) SAT 2003 76% 14 5 14 
ENGLISH (READING) SAT 2002 74% 14 5 19 
ENGLISH (READING) SAT 2001 78% 19 5 13 
ENGLISH (READING) SAT 2000 79% 23 2 11 
ENGLISH (READING) SAT 1999 74% 12 3 21 
ENGLISH (READING) SAT 1998 60% 2 18 46 

     
ENGLISH (WRITING) SAT 2004 59% 3 21 45 
ENGLISH (WRITING) SAT 2003 57% 0 25 57 
ENGLISH (WRITING) SAT 2002 55% 1 32 63 
ENGLISH (WRITING) SAT 2001 55% 1 26 58 
ENGLISH (WRITING) SAT 2000 53% 2 27 67 
ENGLISH (WRITING) SAT 1999 48% 1 43 65 
ENGLISH (WRITING) SAT 1998 47% 0 46 71 

     
MATHEMATICS SAT 2004 72% 7 6 21 
MATHEMATICS SAT 2003 69% 3 7 29 
MATHEMATICS SAT 2002 73% 12 10 27 
MATHEMATICS SAT 2001 71% 13 9 26 
MATHEMATICS SAT 2000 71% 14 8 24 
MATHEMATICS SAT 1999 63% 9 14 42 
MATHEMATICS SAT 1998 49% 0 39 65 

     
SCIENCE SAT 2004 84% 43 3 7 
SCIENCE SAT 2003 85% 34 2 7 
SCIENCE SAT 2002 86% 41 1 7 
SCIENCE SAT 2001 88% 48 0 1 
SCIENCE SAT 2000 83% 37 2 8 
SCIENCE SAT 1999 74% 22 6 22 
SCIENCE SAT 1998 60% 7 35 46 

Page 12



*Floor Targets apply to English, mathematics and science 
Another indicator of improvement is to consider the number of Key Stage 2 
schools (84 in all) attaining within attainment bands. The table above shows the 
improvement in Level 4 results from 1998 – 2004 but also shows the number of 
schools attaining 90% Level 4 or better and the number of schools attaining 
below 50% Level 4 or better.  

 
In addition it also indicates the number of schools with results below the DfES 
Floor Target of 65% Level 4+ attainment for primary schools.  In 2004 the 
proportion of schools below this critical measure has been reduced from 2003 in 
English and mathematics. This reduction must continue and forms a specific 
focus for 2004/05 planned intervention in primary schools.   
 

Action being taken to improve results. 2004 Key Stage 2 results have 
shown good improvements, however they continue to be well below the 
statutory targets agreed with the DfES for 2004 in English (83% L4+, 33% 
L5+) and mathematics (85% L4+, 34% L5+).  
 
Through the National Primary Strategy, the Council is working actively to 
impact on improving results by focusing different levels of support and 
intervention to different schools dependent upon need. The School 
Improvement Consultant team has been strengthened and the group of 
Consultant Headteachers has been extended further and will be working 
with schools with the greatest capacity and/or need to improve their 
results.  
 
A further national programme of intensifying support (ISP) is being 
implemented in a group of ten schools with results below the DfES floor 
targets of 65%. These levels of support will be required to enable 
Rotherham schools to respond to the challenging targets agreed with the 
DfES for 2005 in English (84% L4+, 34% L5+) and mathematics (85% 
L4+, 37% L5+). 

 
8. Finance:   

The Primary Strategy initiatives and Intensifying Support Programme is 
funded through the Standards Fund Grant and targeted to greatest need. 

 
9. Risks and Uncertainties:   
 Should Rotherham’s schools show insufficient progress this could impact 

on the Council’s Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) 
grading. In addition the Council’s monitoring via the DfES Standards and 
Effectiveness Unit (SEU)  and the individual inspection of schools by 
OFSTED could have a negative impact on the public image of 
Rotherham’s education provision. 

 
 

Page 13



10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications: 
The action plan arising from the 2004 primary performance data should be 
consistent with the Community Strategy and Corporate Plan. The 
improvement actions should address the Corporate Priorities for: 

 
Regeneration: - improving the image of Rotherham. 

- providing sustainable neighbourhoods of quality, 
choice and aspiration. 

Equalities:  - promoting equality. 
  - promoting good community relations. 
Sustainability: - improving the quality of life. 

- increasing employment opportunities for local 
people. 

   
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation:   

 “Key Stage 2 End of Key Stage assessment Summer Term 2004” 
Individual school attainment outcomes for Key Stage 2. 
Documents published for all Rotherham primary schools with detailed 
information on school performance. 
Individual schools’ Key Stage 2 results are public information formally 
published by the DfES. Foundation Stage and Key Stage 1 results are not 
subject to the same procedures. Aggregated LEA results are public 
information. 

 
 
 
Contact Name:  
Helen Rogers,  
Acting Principal School Improvement Adviser 
Extension 2591 
E-mail: helen.rogers@rotherham.gov.uk 

Page 14



 

K
ey

 S
ta

ge
 2

 a
gg

re
ga

te
 s

co
re

s 
19

98
 - 

20
04

 
R

ot
he

rh
am

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l L

E
A

's

05010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

E
ng

la
nd

R
ot

he
rh

am
B

ar
ns

le
y

D
on

ca
st

er
S

he
ffi

el
d

W
ak

ef
ie

ld

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

 

Page 15



 

S
ta

tis
tic

al
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

s 
LE

A
's

 
Ke

y 
S

ta
ge

 2
 a

gg
re

ga
te

 s
co

re
s 

19
98

 - 
20

04

05010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

30
0 Eng

lan
d

Roth
erh

am

Wak
efi

eld

Barn
sle

y

Wiga
n

Don
ca

ste
r

Stoc
kto

n o
n T

ee
s

Tam
es

ide Nort
h T

yn
es

ide Stok
e o

n T
ren

t
St H

ele
ns

Red
ca

r &
 C

lev
ela

nd

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

 

Page 16



 

S
ta

tis
tic

al
 N

ei
gh

bo
ut

 L
E

A
's

 - 
ag

gr
eg

at
e 

sc
or

es
 

K
ey

 S
ta

ge
 2

 L
ev

el
 4

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

po
in

ts
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 2
00

3 
- 2

00
4

024681012

Eng
lan

d
Roth

erh
am

Wak
efi

eld

Barn
sle

y

Wiga
n

Don
ca

ste
r

Stoc
kto

n o
n T

ee
s

Tam
es

ide Nort
h T

yn
es

ide Stok
e o

n T
ren

t
St H

ele
ns

Red
ca

r &
 C

lev
ela

nd

 

Page 17



 

 

 
 
1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member and Advisers  

2.  Date: 18th January 2004 

3.  Title: OFSTED Inspections of Rotherham Schools: Summer 
and Autumn Terms 2004 

4.  Programme Area: ECALS 

 
 
5. Summary:  To inform members of the outcome of the Ofsted inspection of 

those schools inspected during the Summer and Autumn Terms 2004. To 
highlight effective schools and to inform members of any school that was 
identified as having concerns.  

 
 
6. Recommendations:  
 

i)  That the reports be received 
 

ii) That those schools with very good and good provision be 
congratulated on the outcome of their OFSTED inspection. 

 
iii) That schools with identified weaknesses be encouraged to improve 

further the quality of their educational provision as rapidly as 
possible. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 5Page 18



 

 

 
 
 
7.      Proposals and Details:   

Over the Summer and Autumn Terms 2004 thirteen schools (10%) were 
inspected by Ofsted. This included five primary schools, five infant schools, one 
special school, one secondary school and the Hospital Teaching and Home 
Tuition Service. The parents’ summaries for each of these schools are attached 
as Appendix 1 together with Part D: Summary of the Main Inspection 
Judgements from the main report. This is graded on OFSTED’s seven point 
score (1=excellent, 2=very good, 3=good, 4=satisfactory, 5=unsatisfactory, 
6=poor, 7=very poor) and will give Members an effective oversight of the 
strengths and weaknesses of each school inspected. 
 
Since they were last inspected two of the schools have made very good 
improvement, four have made good improvement and in the other six 
improvement was satisfactory. The Hospital and Home Teaching Service had 
not been inspected before, therefore no judgement, in relation to improvement, 
was made. The overall effectiveness of every school inspected was either 
satisfactory or better with nine being good overall and one very good. 
Standards of pupil achievement and teaching and learning were judged as 
good in ten schools and satisfactory in the other three. Leadership and 
management overall were judged as very good in two schools, good in eight 
schools and satisfactory in three. In eight of the thirteen schools, the very good 
leadership of the head teacher was cited as a strength of the school. Value for 
money was good or better in ten schools and satisfactory in the other three. In 
all but one school pupils’ attitudes and behaviour were good and in over half of 
these it was very good. 

 
Particular strengths mentioned in many of the schools inspected were: 
partnership with parents; provision for children with Special Educational Needs 
and; the quality of the curriculum, particularly where in primary schools it had 
been enriched and extended to support pupils’ learning. It is clear from this that 
Rotherham primary schools are beginning to take on board the Government’s 
drive for both excellence and enjoyment. Recurring areas for development in a 
number of schools were around assessment, including the tracking of pupil 
progress, marking and reporting and recording. The School Improvement 
Service, through the Primary Strategy with its focus on Assessment for 
Learning, will be supporting schools in this area of work.  In a few schools 
monitoring of the wider curriculum, beyond the core subjects, was mentioned 
and ICT, although cited as an area of strength in four of the schools was an 
area for development in others. 
 
Rotherham Council is committed to reducing the number of schools in the 
OFSTED concern categories and to improve the proportion of schools judged 
with higher gradings. In this term’s group of schools it is pleasing to report no 
schools were placed in OFSTED categories, the majority of schools were  
judged as good with one more school judged as very good. All schools were 
judged to be making at least satisfactory progress.  
 

Page 19



 

 

 
 

8. Finance:  Schools that fall into any of OFSTED’s categories of weak schools, 
special measures or serious weakness, normally receive support from the 
centrally held School Improvement grant (a previous Standards Fund Grant 
allocated specifically for this purpose) to assist the school to remedy causes of 
weakness as quickly as possible. This group of schools draws significantly on 
support from the School Improvement Service, Inclusion Support Services in 
addition to other, centrally funded Services depending on the weaknesses 
identified.  Support is deployed to the schools to help them improve as quickly 
as possible.  

 
9. Risks and Uncertainties:  The designation, by Ofsted, of a school falling into 

one of their categories of concern impacts on the Council’s Comprehensive 
Performance Assessment (CPA) grading. In addition the Council’s monitoring 
via the DfES Standards and Effectiveness Unit (SEU) could have a negative 
impact on the public image of Rotherham’s education provision. 

 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications:  Any plans arising from an 

analysis of in these inspection reports  should be consistent with the 
Community Strategy and Corporate Plan. The improvement actions should 
address the Corporate Priorities for: 

 
Regeneration:  - improving the image of Rotherham. 

- providing sustainable neighbourhoods of quality, choice     
and aspiration. 

Equalities:  - promoting equality. 
  - promoting good community relations. 
Sustainability:  - improving the quality of life. 

- increasing employment opportunities for local people. 
 
 
11.    Background Papers and Consultation:  OFSTED Section 10 Reports for all 

schools inspected (See Appendix 1) 
 
 
12.    Contact Name :  
Maggie Donnellan  
Principal School Improvement Adviser: Quality and Performance 
Extension 2592 
e-mail maggie.donnellan@rotherham.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 

 

 
 
Appendix 1: Parental summaries of OFSTED reports for: 
 
School:           Inspection date 
 

Greasbrough J&I School 4-6th May 2004 

St Bede’s RC Primary 17-19th May 2004 

Sitwell Infant School 26-28th April 2004 

Woodsetts J&I School 14-16th June 2004 

Thorpe Hesley Infant School 14-16th June 2004 

Hospital Teaching and Home Tuition Service 7-8th July 2004 

Brampton Cortonwood Infant School 13-15th setember 2004 

Newman Special School  13-16th September 2004  

Brinsworth Howarth J & I School                                                27-29th September 2004 

Bramley Sunnyside Infant School 27-29th September 2004 

Aston Fence J & I School 4-6th October 2004  

Aton Comprehensive School  1-5th November 2004 

Brinsworth Manor Infant School 8-10th November 2004 
 

 

   

Page 21



 
 
1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member and Advisers, 

Education, Culture and Leisure Services 
2.  Date: 18th January 2005 

3.  Title: Education, Culture and Leisure Complaints Summary, 
April – September 2004  [Programme Area only] 
 

 Appendix A - Details of ECALS Programme Area 
Complaints April – September 2004 

 
[Wards affected – All] 

4.  Programme Area: Education, Culture and Leisure Services 

 
 
5. Summary 
 
This report summarises the number of complaints received by Education, Culture 
and Leisure within the period April 2004 to September 2004 with comparative 
analysis by category and 2003 data. [N.B. This does not include school complaints]. 
 
Appendix A provides details of individual complaints received, whether or not they 
were upheld and subsequent action taken. 
 
 
6. Recommendations 
 

 That the Report be received  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 6Page 22



 
 

 

   

7. Proposals and Details 
 
Within the period April 2004 to September 2004 there has been a total of thirty 
official complaints received by the Programme Area. Twenty of which have been 
upheld. 
 
Members attention is drawn to the following table which summarises the number of 
complaints by Corporate category for the first two quarters of the 2004-05 financial 
year. 
 
 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 6 Month Summary 
Category Apr - June July - Sept Numbers Percentage 
ACTION OF STAFF 0 1 1 3.3% 
COST OF SERVICE 0 1 1 3.3% 
DELAY IN SERVICE 1 0 1 3.3% 
LACK OF SERVICE 5 6 11 36.7% 
LACK OF INFORMATION 1 0 1 3.3% 
QUALITY OF SERVICE 5 4 9 30.0% 
OTHER 3 3 6 20.0% 

TOTAL 15 15 30  
 
Individual details of each complaint are shown in Appendix A. 
 
In addition members attention is drawn to the following table which details number of 
Programme Area complaints for the first two quarters of 2003/04 and 2004/05. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Number of Complaints

26

36

1515

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

2003/04 2004/05 

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr
2003/04 2004/05 

Page 23



 
 

 

   

8. Finance 
There are no financial implications to this report. The relevant Service Leader and 
Budget Holder will address financial implications of action to address individual 
issues in response to complaints. Members will be consulted where appropriate. 
 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
The Programme Area is committed to provide high quality customer focused 
services, our aim is to raise expectations and failure to deliver to these expectations 
will affect customer satisfaction. 
 
Where appropriate action plans are developed and service improvements are 
implemented in response to upheld complaints. 
 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
The report is structured around the designated Corporate complaints categories, and 
the data within contributes to the Corporate complaints reporting mechanism 
supporting the Performance Management Framework. 
 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 

 ECALS Complaints Database 
 Correspondence and discussions with service managers 

 
 
Contact Name :  
Rebecca Lunghi   Principal Officer – Performance Management 
Tel: [82]2524  rebecca.lunghi@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
Gill Walker  Senior Performance Officer – Complaints and Equalities 
Tel: [82]2642  gill.walker@rotherham.gov.uk 
 

Page 24



A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

 D
et

ai
ls

 o
f E

C
A

LS
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
A

re
a 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

A
pr

il 
– 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
00

4 
 

[D
oe

s 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

 s
ch

oo
l c

om
pl

ai
nt

s]
 

     

C
at

eg
or

y 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t 

D
et

ai
ls

 
N

o 
of

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
U

ph
el

d 
A

ct
io

n 
Ta

ke
n 

A
ct

io
n 

of
 S

ta
ff 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 &
 

Pr
om

ot
io

na
l 

Is
su

e 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 

[R
ef

: 8
35

] 
1 

N
o 

 

C
os

t o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

D
in

ni
ng

to
n 

Li
br

ar
y 

C
ha

rg
es

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 u

se
 o

f f
ac

si
m

ile
 

[R
ef

: 8
14

] 
1 

N
o 

 

D
el

ay
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 
In

cl
us

io
n 

R
ef

us
al

 to
 is

su
e 

st
at

em
en

t o
f S

EN
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

[R
ef

: 7
41

]] 
1 

Ye
s 

A 
st

at
em

en
t o

f S
EN

 w
as

 is
su

ed
 

La
ck

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Ad
m

is
si

on
 &

 A
pp

ea
ls

 
U

nh
ap

py
 w

ith
 A

pp
ea

l P
an

el
 d

ec
is

io
n 

[R
ef

: 7
96

] 
1 

N
o 

 

La
ck

 o
f B

oo
ks

 w
rit

te
n 

in
 U

rd
u 

[R
ef

: 7
82

]
1 

Ye
s 

Ad
di

tio
na

l s
to

ck
 b

ei
ng

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
 

La
ck

 o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

– 
H

ire
 o

f D
VD

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 

[R
ef

: 7
60

]]
1 

Ye
s 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

cl
ar

ity
  

C
en

tra
l L

ib
ra

ry
 

 

Ac
ce

ss
 to

 re
st

ric
te

d 
w

eb
-s

ite
s 

[R
ef

: 7
64

, 7
68

]
2 

N
o 

 

C
lif

to
n 

Pa
rk

 
Ba

rri
er

 to
 e

nt
ra

nc
e 

lo
ck

ed
  

[R
ef

: 7
95

]
1 

Ye
s 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

sa
fe

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 

G
ra

ng
e 

G
ol

f C
ou

rs
e 

Te
le

ph
on

e 
bo

ok
in

g-
lin

e 
bu

sy
 

[R
ef

: 7
97

]
1 

Ye
s 

Fa
ul

t o
n 

te
le

ph
on

e 
lin

e 
de

al
t w

ith
 

H
R

 
Jo

b 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

rm
 m

is
pl

ac
ed

 
[R

ef
: 7

94
]

1 
N

o 
 

O
ak

w
oo

d 
Sw

im
m

in
g 

Po
ol

 
C

ha
ng

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 1
 in

fa
nt

 o
nl

y 
[R

ef
: 7

69
] 

1 
Ye

s 
Sh

or
t t

er
m

 –
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 to
 u

se
 g

en
er

al
 

ch
an

gi
ng

 b
en

ch
es

 a
s 

an
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
Lo

ng
 te

rm
 –

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t f

ac
ilit

ie
s 

pl
an

ne
d 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

D
is

co
nt

in
ua

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 u
ni

fo
rm

  v
ou

ch
er

 s
ch

em
e 

[R
ef

: 7
67

]
1 

N
o 

 

Th
ry

be
rg

h 
C

ou
nt

ry
 P

ar
k 

R
eq

ue
st

 fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

 
[R

ef
: 8

00
]

1 
Ye

s 
Pr

ov
is

io
n 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t o
f 

ca
r p

ar
k 

– 
fu

nd
in

g 
 n

ot
 y

et
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

W
at

h 
Li

br
ar

y 
St

oc
k 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
[R

ef
: 7

22
]

1 
Ye

s 
Ad

di
tio

na
l s

to
ck

 b
ei

ng
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 

La
ck

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
fo

r C
at

eg
or

y 
11

 
 

 

C
en

tra
l L

ib
ra

ry
 

R
e-

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 s

to
ck

 w
ith

in
 li

br
ar

y 
[R

ef
: 8

02
, 7

57
, 7

54
, 8

03
]

4 
Ye

s 
Si

gn
ag

e 
m

ad
e 

cl
ea

re
r 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

 
C

lif
to

n 
Pa

rk
 

C
le

an
lin

es
s 

of
 to

ile
ts

 
[R

ef
: 7

70
, 7

92
]

2 
Ye

s 
In

st
ru

ct
io

n 
is

su
ed

 to
 c

on
tra

ct
or

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 

C
or

on
at

io
n 

Pa
rk

 M
al

tb
y 

Va
nd

al
is

m
 to

 p
la

y 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

[R
ef

: 7
63

]
1 

Ye
s 

R
em

ov
al

 o
f v

an
da

lis
ed

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t, 

re
pa

ir 
of

 
su

rfa
ce

 a
nd

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f  
ty

re
 

G
re

as
br

ou
gh

 P
ar

k 
D

og
 fo

ul
in

g 
[R

ef
: 7

47
]

1 
Ye

s 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t b
y 

U
rb

an
 

Pa
rk

 R
an

ge
rs

 a
nd

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l W
ar

de
ns

 

M
al

tb
y 

Sp
or

t C
en

tre
 

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t s

eg
re

ga
tio

n 
fo

r a
du

lt 
sw

im
m

in
g 

ab
ilit

ie
s 

[R
ef

: 7
91

]
1 

Ye
s 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f p

oo
l p

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

an
d 

se
ss

io
ns

 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 u
nd

er
w

ay
.  

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
ea

rly
 2

00
5 

[Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

co
nt

in
ue

d]
 

 

 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
fo

r C
at

eg
or

y 
9 

 
 

Page 25



A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

 C
at

eg
or

y 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t 

D
et

ai
ls

 
N

o 
of

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
U

ph
el

d 
A

ct
io

n 
Ta

ke
n 

Br
am

pt
on

-B
ie

rlo
w

 
M

oo
rb

rid
ge

 C
re

sc
en

t 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 p
la

y 
ar

ea
 

[R
ef

: 7
87

]
1 

N
o 

 

C
en

tra
l L

ib
ra

ry
 

Vi
ru

s 
de

te
ct

ed
 o

n 
us

er
s 

em
ai

l 
[R

ef
: 7

66
]

1 
Ye

s 
So

ur
ce

 o
f v

iru
s 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

 

H
er

rin
gt

ho
rp

e 
Li

br
ar

y 
N

oi
se

 g
en

er
at

ed
 b

y 
ch

ild
re

n 
us

in
g 

lib
ra

ry
 

[R
ef

: 7
66

]
1 

Ye
s 

St
af

f r
em

in
de

d 
of

 n
ee

d 
to

 s
pe

ak
 to

 p
eo

pl
e 

ac
tin

g 
in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 
M

ow
br

ay
 G

ar
de

ns
 

Li
br

ar
y 

Er
ec

tio
n 

of
 fe

nc
in

g 
ar

ou
nd

 re
cr

ea
tio

n 
fie

ld
 

[R
ef

: 7
42

]
1 

N
o 

 

R
os

eh
ill 

Vi
ct

or
ia

 P
ar

k 
Yo

ut
h 

N
ui

sa
nc

e 
an

d 
va

nd
al

is
m

 
[R

ef
: 7

89
]

1 
Ye

s 
D

ire
ct

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

by
 o

n-
si

te
 R

an
ge

r, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 c
om

pl
ai

na
nt

 a
nd

 re
m

ov
al

 o
f g

ra
ffi

ti 

U
lle

y 
C

ou
nt

ry
 P

ar
k 

Va
nd

al
is

m
 to

 P
ac

km
an

s 
Br

id
ge

 
[R

ef
: 7

85
]

1 
N

o 
 

O
th

er
 

 

 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
fo

r C
at

eg
or

y 
6 

 
 

 

To
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

fo
r A

pr
il 

– 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

30
 

 
 

Page 26



 

 

 
 
 
1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member and Advisors  

2.  Date: 18th January 2005 

3.  Title: School Balances and Planned Use 

4.  Programme Area: Education, Culture and Leisure Services 

 
 
 
5. Summary:  This report advises of the level of School Balances as at the end 

of March 2004 and how the level of balances compares with previous years, 
and how the 63 Rotherham Schools with surplus balances in excess of 5% at 
the end of 2003/2004 intend to use these balances. 

 
The number of schools with surplus balances in excess of 5% has reduced 
from 86 as at the end of 2002/03 to 63 as at the end of 2003/04.  

 
 
 
 
6. Recommendations 
 

6.1 That the levels and planned use of balances be noted 
6.2 That the Schools Finance Team work closely with those schools 

needing support to develop their financial management skills. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL  

Agenda Item 7Page 27



 

 

 
7. Proposals and Details:  Appendices 1 to 3 show the amounts and 

movement in School Balances. 
 

Appendix 4 shows how the schools with surplus balances in excess of 5% 
have advised they plan to utilise these balances. 

 
It should be noted that combined balances (delegated budget plus money 
invested in ‘declared savings’) of £4,643,120 as at the end of 2003/04, 
reduced by £178,746 (3.7%) from £4,821,866 school balances at the end of 
2002/03. 

  
Concern was raised at the end of 2002/03 that Primary school balances were 
considered high – these reduced by almost 23% by the end of 2003/04 to a 
more appropriate level. 

 
Concern was raised at the end of 2002/03 that Secondary school balances 
were considered too low – these increased to a more appropriate level by the 
end of 2003/04. 

 
Concern was raised that at the end of 2002/03 Special school balances were 
also high. These balances further increased by over 56% by the end of 
2003/04.   

 
Overall balances per pupil 

 
Sector 2002/03 2003/04 Change 
Primary £168 £133 -£35
Secondary £19 £42 +£23
Special £671 £1,060 +£389
Total £113 £108 -£5

 
8. Finance:  There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties:  Failure to challenge schools constructively on the 

planned use of their balances would be to abdicate a key role of the Council. 
Such challenge also facilitates the identification of schools in greatest need of 
support to improve their financial management skills.  

 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications:  N/A 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation:  Education, Culture and Leisure 

Services Outturn Report 2003/04 (Cabinet Member and Advisors ~ 29/6/04) 
 
 
Contact Name: Pete Hudson, Strategic Finance Officer, ext 2550. 
peter.hudson@rotherham.gov.uk 

Page 28



A
pp

en
di

x 
1:

 S
ch

oo
l's

 D
el

eg
at

ed
 B

ud
ge

t B
al

an
ce

s:
 1

99
9/

20
00

 - 
20

03
/2

00
4

99
9,3

08

1,7
15

,60
1

2,1
37

,20
4

2,7
04

,63
7

1,8
25

,97
4

8,1
04

75
7,1

02

46
0,9

02

25
0,8

59

67
0,9

77

25
4,6

64

29
5,7

37

21
0,1

22

29
5,5

49

54
0,6

15

0

50
0,

00
0

1,
00

0,
00

0

1,
50

0,
00

0

2,
00

0,
00

0

2,
50

0,
00

0

3,
00

0,
00

0
1999/2000

2000/2001

2001/2002

2002/2003

2003/2004

1999/2000

2000/2001

2001/2002

2002/2003

2003/2004

1999/2000

2000/2001

2001/2002

2002/2003

2003/2004

Pr
im

ar
y

Se
co

nd
ar

y
Sp

ec
ia

l

£

Page 29



A
pp

en
di

x 
2:

 S
ch

oo
l's

 C
om

bi
ne

d 
B

al
an

ce
s:

 1
99

9/
20

00
 - 

20
03

/2
00

4

2,3
36

,84
1

3,1
26

,67
3

3,6
49

,14
6

4,0
49

,26
1

3,1
22

,23
8

57
,87

8

87
6,2

23

63
9,5

60

35
1,8

51

78
4,8

19

38
6,5

58

49
0,4

13

41
2,8

61

47
0,1

45

73
6,0

63

£0

£5
00

,0
00

£1
,0

00
,0

00

£1
,5

00
,0

00

£2
,0

00
,0

00

£2
,5

00
,0

00

£3
,0

00
,0

00

£3
,5

00
,0

00

£4
,0

00
,0

00

£4
,5

00
,0

00

19
99

/2
00

0
20

00
/2

00
1

20
01

/2
00

2
20

02
/2

00
3

20
03

/2
00

4

Pr
im

ar
y

Se
co

nd
ar

y
Sp

ec
ia

l

Page 30



Percentage Movement in Sector Combined Balances: 2002/03 to 2003/04

Appendix 3

Combined School Balances: 2003/2004

67%

17%

16%

Primary
Secondary
Special

Combined School Balances: 2002/2003

83%

7%
10%

Primary
Secondary
Special

Page 31



Su
m

 o
f 

Am
ou

nt
 E

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
(£

)
Ar

ea
Sc

ho
ol

s
CA

PI
TA

TI
O

N
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

CU
RR

IC
U

LU
M

FO
U

N
D

AT
IO

N
IC

T
N

T
O

TH
E R

PR
EM

IS
ES

TE
AC

H
IN

G
 S

TA
FF

W
O

R
KF

O
R
CE

 R
EF

O
R
M

SE
N

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

Ab
be

y
50

,0
00

40
,0

00
9,

00
0

75
,0

00
17

4,
00

0
An

st
on

 P
ar

k 
In

fa
nt

30
,0

00
10

,5
21

40
,5

21
As

to
n 

Fe
nc

e 
J&

I
4,

05
1

21
,5

00
10

,0
00

35
,5

51
As

to
n 

H
al

l J
&

I
0

0
0

0
0

Au
gh

to
n 

Pr
im

ar
y

8,
00

0
18

,1
00

26
,0

00
52

,1
00

Ba
ds

le
y 

M
oo

r 
In

fa
nt

24
,4

54
8,

69
7

20
,0

00
1,

90
0

40
,0

00
95

,0
51

Ba
ds

le
y 

M
oo

r 
Ju

ni
or

31
,1

61
24

,9
85

56
,1

46
Br

am
le

y 
G

ra
ng

e 
Pr

im
ar

y
40

,0
00

37
,0

00
77

,0
00

Br
am

pt
on

 C
or

to
nw

oo
d 

In
fa

nt
6,

53
2

13
,8

85
20

,4
17

Br
am

pt
on

 t
he

 E
lli

s 
CE

 I
nf

an
t

10
,0

00
24

,4
41

34
,4

41
Br

am
pt

on
 t

he
 E

lli
s 

CE
 J

un
io

r
2,

50
0

30
,0

00
32

,5
00

Ca
nk

lo
w

 W
oo

ds
 P

rim
ar

y
30

,0
00

15
,5

89
32

,0
00

77
,5

89
Ca

tc
lif

fe
 P

rim
ar

y
25

,2
16

25
,2

16
D

al
to

n 
Fo

l ja
m

be
 P

rim
ar

y
7,

00
0

22
,0

00
29

,0
00

Fe
rh

am
 P

rim
ar

y
7,

20
4

35
,0

00
6,

00
0

5,
00

0
11

,9
77

65
,1

81
G

re
en

 A
rb

ou
r

15
,0

00
88

,0
26

20
,0

00
12

3,
02

6
H

er
rin

gt
ho

rp
e 

Ju
ni

or
10

,0
00

2,
00

0
17

,0
00

5,
00

0
34

,0
00

H
i g

h 
G

re
av

e 
Ju

ni
or

23
,0

00
9,

00
0

22
,0

84
54

,0
84

Ke
lfo

rd
Ki

ve
to

n 
Pa

rk
 M

ea
do

w
s 

Ju
ni

or
7,

00
0

8,
00

0
12

,0
00

27
,0

00
La

u g
ht

on
 A

ll 
Sa

in
ts

 C
E 

Pr
im

ar
y

19
,0

83
19

,0
83

La
u g

ht
on

 J
&

I
6,

00
0

18
,0

00
10

,1
00

34
,1

00
Li

st
er

da
le

 (
D

al
to

n)
 J

 &
 I

10
,0

00
17

,4
28

27
,4

28
M

al
tb

y 
Cr

ag
s 

In
fa

nt
0

0
0

10
,0

00
10

,0
00

M
al

tb
y 

Cr
ag

s 
Ju

ni
or

25
,0

00
13

,0
00

10
,0

00
48

,0
00

M
al

tb
y 

H
al

l I
nf

an
t

0
0

0
0

0
0

M
al

tb
y 

M
an

or
 I

nf
an

t
31

,4
39

14
,0

94
45

,5
33

M
al

tb
y 

M
an

or
 J

un
io

r
11

,6
09

11
,0

00
30

,9
04

53
,5

13
M

ea
do

w
ha

ll 
Ju

ni
or

12
,3

60
3,

47
6

33
,0

00
48

,8
36

M
ilt

on
70

,0
00

34
,0

00
10

4,
00

0
N

ew
m

an
75

,7
57

50
,0

00
12

5,
75

7
Po

pe
 P

iu
s 

X 
Ca

th
ol

ic
 H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
50

,0
00

10
3,

00
0

28
,2

82
18

1,
28

2
Ra

w
m

ar
sh

 R
os

eh
ill

 J
un

io
r

16
,5

17
5,

50
0

3,
50

5
3,

00
0

28
,5

22
Ra

w
m

ar
sh

 R
ye

cr
of

t 
In

fa
nt

18
,1

00
4,

50
0

9,
50

0
32

,1
00

Ra
w

m
ar

sh
 T

ho
ro

ga
te

 J
&

I
30

,0
00

30
,0

00
Re

ds
co

pe
 I

nf
an

t
5,

00
0

37
,2

87
42

,2
87

Re
ds

co
pe

 J
un

io
r

46
,2

49
46

,2
49

Si
tw

el
l I

nf
an

t
13

,8
63

18
,2

70
32

,1
33

St
 G

er
ar

d'
s 

Ca
th

ol
ic

 P
rim

ar
y 

(T
hr

yb
er

gh
)

9,
32

0
9,

32
0

St
 M

ar
y'

s 
Ca

th
ol

ic
 P

rim
ar

y 
(H

er
rin

gt
ho

rp
e)

39
,7

61
39

,7
61

St
 M

ar
y'

s 
Ca

th
ol

ic
 P

rim
ar

y 
(M

al
tb

y)
7,

88
5

24
,3

29
32

,2
14

Sw
in

to
n 

Fi
tz

w
ill

ia
m

 I
nf

an
t

26
,5

10
26

,5
10

Sw
in

to
n 

Fi
tz

w
ill

ia
m

 J
un

io
r

8,
00

0
4,

00
0

4,
00

0
5,

00
0

21
,0

00
Sw

in
to

n 
Q

ue
en

 P
rim

ar
y

21
,5

77
13

,5
00

9,
00

0
11

,6
90

10
,0

08
65

,7
75

Th
r y

be
rg

h 
Co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

12
,0

00
10

,0
00

12
0,

70
0

14
2,

70
0

Th
r y

be
rg

h 
Fu

lle
rt

on
 C

E 
Pr

im
ar

y
4,

50
0

8,
00

0
12

,5
00

Th
ur

cr
of

t 
In

fa
nt

20
,6

12
9,

60
8

30
,2

20
Th

ur
cr

of
t 

Ju
ni

or
11

,9
34

22
,0

00
30

,0
00

63
,9

34
To

dw
ic

k 
J&

I
1,

00
0

7,
00

0
14

,4
50

10
,0

00
32

,4
50

W
at

h 
Ce

nt
ra

l J
un

io
r

12
,4

79
7,

00
0

27
,9

82
11

,0
00

10
,0

00
68

,4
61

W
at

h 
Vi

ct
or

ia
 J

&
I

55
,9

63
55

,9
63

W
en

tw
or

th
 C

E 
J&

I
12

,4
56

15
,0

00
1,

00
0

2,
50

0
1,

61
0

1,
50

0
10

,0
00

44
,0

66
W

es
t 

M
el

to
n 

J&
I

28
,3

14
28

,3
14

W
hi

st
on

 G
ra

n g
e

27
,0

00
30

,0
00

57
,0

00
W

hi
st

on
 J

&
I

9,
97

6
6,

51
5

5,
00

0
5,

00
0

26
,4

91
W

ic
ke

rs
le

y 
N

or
th

fie
ld

 P
rim

ar
y

73
,3

49
73

,3
49

W
oo

ds
et

ts
 J

&
I

2,
20

0
16

,4
29

27
,4

76
57

0
88

0
47

,5
55

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

84
,6

76
12

5,
91

6
92

,7
51

71
,5

21
28

7,
89

5
18

0,
27

5
54

4,
87

4
59

9,
83

1
68

4,
78

0
16

6,
71

0
0

2,
83

9,
22

9

Page 32



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 4

: A
N

A
LY

SI
S 

O
F 

SC
H

O
O

LS
 IN

TE
N

D
ED

 U
SE

 O
F 

B
A

LA
N

C
ES

C
O

N
TI

N
G

EN
C

Y
4%

C
U

R
R

IC
U

LU
M

3% FO
U

N
D

AT
IO

N
3% IC

T
10

% N
T

6%

O
TH

ER
19

%
PR

EM
IS

ES
21

%

TE
AC

H
IN

G
 S

TA
FF

25
%

W
O

R
KF

O
R

C
E 

R
EF

O
R

M
6%

C
AP

IT
AT

IO
N

3%

Page 33



Agenda Item 8Page 34
By virtue of paragraph(s) 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


